
 
STA/STPA 

GOVERNING BOARD/SAC 
MEMBER PACKET  

REGULAR 
MEETING/CAREER 

ACADEMIES WORKSHOP  
August 12, 2021 

 
 
 
 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
Eileen Turenne, STA High School Principal 

Nicole Handy, STPA Middle School Principal 
 

 
 



SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 
SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 

STA/STPA Governing Board Regular Meeting Agenda/ 
Career Academy Workshop 

      August 12, 2021 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Opening of Meeting 

a. Call to Order  
b. Pledge of Allegiance 
c. Roll Call  

Roger Dunson, Ayesha Edmond, Russell Feldman, Christina Grenga, Dan Heller, Diane 
Heinz, Robert Kesten, Suzanne Nicolini, and James Notter 

d. Open Meeting Act Statement 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes  
a. STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting Minutes June 10, 2021 

 
3. Reports 

a. Treasurer’s/Financial Report – Dan Heller 
b. Executive Director – Carla Lovett         
c. Career Academy Workshop – Joshua Wigelsworth                    
d. Committees/Special Reports 

 
4. Public Comments on Agenda Items  

 
5. SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda 

a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH ACADEMY:  
Administrative Items 
A-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools 

2021-2022. 
                  Financial Items  
              F-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements  
  for the month ending May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 as required by the Sponsor.  
              F-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools Holdings, 

 LLC Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Report for month ending May 31, 2021 
and June 30, 2021. 

F-3 I recommend that the Board approve the consulting agreement with The Stepping 
Stones Group LLC for Speech-Language Pathology and other services offered as 
needed. 

F-4 I recommend that the Board ratify the Vendor Advertisement Agreement 
between SouthTech Academy and Ed Morse Automotive Group. 

F-5 I recommend that the Board approve the agreement with All Metro Health Care 
for the school nurse for the 2021-2022 School Year. 

F-6 I recommend that the Board approve the amended STA Operating Budget for 
SY21. 

b. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 
c. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 
d. Approval of Each Pulled Item 

file://w2k1571dc/UserData/1133669/GOVERNING%20BOARD/MARCH%2011,%202021/Governing%20Board%20Presentation%203.11.21.pptx


 
6. SouthTech Preparatory Academy Consent Agenda 

a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY: 
  Administrative Items  

PA-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools 
2021-2022. 

Financial Items 
              PF-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements  
  for the month ending May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 as required by the Sponsor.  
              PF-2 I recommend that the Board approve the consulting agreement with The Stepping  

 Stones Group LLC for Speech-Language Pathology and other services offered as 
needed.  

PF-3  I recommend that the Board approve the amended STPA Operating 
 Budget for SY21. 

b. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions  
c. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 
d. Approval of Each Pulled Item  

 

7. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items  
 

8. Board Comments  
 

9. Motion to Adjourn  
 

 



SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 
SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 

STA/STPA Governing Board Regular Meeting Minutes 
      June 10, 2021 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Opening of Meeting 
a. Call to Order – 5:57 PM 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 
c. Roll Call  

Present: Roger Dunson, Ayesha Edmond, Russell Feldman, Dan Heller, Diane Heinz,  
 Robert Kesten, Suzanne Nicolini, and James Notter 

Absent: Christina Grenga 
Quorum confirmed. 

d. Open Meeting Act Statement 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes for the STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting May 
13, 2021 
Motion: Dan Heller 
Second: James Notter 
All in favor. Motion passes. 
 

3. Reports 
a. Treasurer’s/Financial Report – Dan Heller 

The Finance Committee met earlier this evening and recommends for Board approval 
Items C-1 through C-5 and PC-1 through PC-4. 

b. Executive Director – Carla Lovett       
o Legal Update on the Tax Referendum 
o Strategic Plan Development 
o Graduation Reminders 
o Financial Impact of Agenda Items 
o Last Day of School – Friday, June 18th 
o School closed – June 28th – July 19th 
o Changes to Board Meetings beginning in August 
o September Board Meeting Date 

• Motion: Suzanne Nicolini  
• Move the Annual and Regular Board Meeting for next school year 

from Thursday, September 9, 2021 to Tuesday, September 14, 2021.  
• Second: Diane Heinz.  
• All in favor. Motion passes.                     

c. SouthTech Academy Principal – Eileen Turenne 
o Recruitment & Enrollment Information – Acceptances 
o Academy Excitement 

• Industry Certifications 
o Class of 2021 = 220 @ 96% 
o STA Total = 853 and counting 

• Music & Sound Production Concert at the Tin Roof in Delray Beach 
• Sister Cities Young Artists Contest 

o Awards by Mayor Steven Grant 
• Senior Bulldog Bash this evening 

file://w2k1571dc/UserData/1133669/GOVERNING%20BOARD/MARCH%2011,%202021/Governing%20Board%20Presentation%203.11.21.pptx


• STA Class of 2021 Graduation – Wednesday, June 16th 8:00 PM at the 
South Florida Fairgrounds 

d. SouthTech Preparatory Academy Principal – Nicole Handy 
• Testing 

o FSA Writing Assessment – 96% completed 
o FSA ELA Assessment -   96% completed 
o FSA Math (incl. Algebra 1 and Geometry) – 96% completed 
o 7th Civics – 97% completed 
o 8th Science – 95% completed 

• Industry Certifications to date:  47/48 passed = 98%  
• Projected Enrollment 

o Registered = 515 
• Events 

o Rock and Roll Fest – June 11th at STPA 1:30pm 
o 8th Grade Promotion STA Gymnasium – June 17th at 6pm 
o Field Days – June 17th and 18th (9:30am – 11:30am) 

e. Committees/Special Reports – None. 
 

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items – None.  
 

5. SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH ACADEMY:  

Old Business    
  None. 

Administrative Items 
A-1 I recommend that the Board approve the revised SouthTech Schools Organizational  

Chart effective July 1, 2021. 
              A-2 I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from May 1,  
  2021 through May 31, 2021. 
              Personnel Items  
               B-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous 
   month. 
  B-2 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Director of  
   Career Academies. 
                  Financial Items  
              C-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements  
  for the month ending April 30, 2021 as required by the Sponsor.  
              C-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools Holdings, 

 LLC Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Report for month ending April 30, 2021. 
               C-3 I recommend that the Board approve the Workers’ Compensation  

Insurance for SY22 with Technology Insurance Co Inc. 
  C-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Proposal of Insurance Coverage  

for Property/Liability Insurance at SouthTech Academy for SY22.  
C-5 I recommend that the Board approve the Proposal of Insurance Coverage 

for Property/Liability Insurance at SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC for 
SY22.  

  Emergency Items 
None. 



b. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 
o Item C-3 pulled by Ayesha Edmond  

c. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 
Motion: Dan Heller 
Second: Russell Feldman 
All in favor. Motion passes. 

d. Approval of Each Pulled Item 
o Item C-3 

1. Motion: Russell Feldman 
2. Second: Diane Heinz 
3. Discussion: Ayesha Edmond pulled the Item for clerical issues. Her 

name was misspelled. Staff members assured Ms. Edmond that it would 
be corrected.  

4. Vote: All in favor. Motion passes. 
 

6. SouthTech Preparatory Academy Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY: 

Old Business 
  None. 
  Administrative Items  

PA-1 I recommend that the Board approve the revised SouthTech Schools Organizational  
Chart effective July 1, 2021. 

               Personnel Items  
 PB-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous 
   month. 
  PB-2 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Director of  
   Career Academies. 

Financial Items 
              PC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements  
  for the month ending April 30, 2021 as required by the Sponsor.  
              PC-2 I recommend that the Board approve the agreement between SouthTech  

 Preparatory Academy, Inc. and the Boynton Beach Police Department for off duty 
Police Officer Special Detail for SY2021-2022. 

 PC-3 I recommend that the Board approve the Workers’ Compensation Insurance for  
  SY22 with Technology Insurance Co Inc. 
 PC-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Proposal of Insurance Coverage for  
  Property/Liability Insurance at SouthTech Preparatory Academy for SY22.  
 Emergency Items 

None. 
b. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions  

o Item PC-2 pulled by Suzanne Nicolini 
c. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 

Motion: James Notter 
Second: Roger Dunson 
All in favor. Motion passes. 

d. Approval of Each Pulled Item  
o Item PC-2 

1. Motion: Suzanne Nicolini 
2. Second: James Notter 



3. Discussion: Suzanne Nicolini had questions about how much the 
contract equates to per hour and why the officer is only scheduled to be 
on-campus for three hours. It was explained to her that the contract is for 
$50/hour with a minimum of three hours on-campus. The hours vary 
based on the number of hours students are on-campus. The officer will 
only remain on-campus while students are there. 

4. Vote: All in favor. Motion passes.  
 

7. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – None. 
 

8. Board Comments  
a. Diane Heinz complimented the Cosmetology Academy instructors and STA staff on their 

work on the “Beauty Behind the Mask” hair and fashion show and remarked how 
confident and goal oriented the students are. 

b. Suzanne Nicolini thanked Carla Lovett for everything she has done for SouthTech 
Schools this year. 

 
9. Motion to Adjourn – 6:34 PM 

 

 

Minutes Prepared by: ____________________ Approved by: ______________________ Dated________ 
                                             Lisa DeVine     Robert Kesten 

 



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve the Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools 2021-
2022. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools provides information to all staff members 
regarding working conditions, employee benefits, and some of the policies affecting their 
employment. It also describes many of the responsibilities of the employees and outlines the 
programs developed by STS to benefit employees.  
 
 
Attachments:   Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools 2021-2022 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 

Agenda Item 
A-1 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 





























Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for month 
ending May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 
financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  
This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 
2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 
Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 
September and December. 
 
 
Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  
 
Presented By: 
 
Ginger DeKalb, Accounting Manager 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
F-1 

 
 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 

 



 

Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 2,595,257$       -$                  -$                  -$                  2,595,257$       

Investments 1160 -                    

Grant receivables 1130 525,743            525,743            

Other current assets 12XX 73,113              73,113              

Deposits 1210 34,232              -                    34,232              

Due from other funds 1140 -                    

Other long-term assets 1400 -                    

 

Total Assets 3,228,345$       -$                  -$                  -$                  3,228,345$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  

Liabilities  

Accounts payable 2120 121,778$          -$                  -$                  -$                  121,778$          

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 428,627            428,627            

Deferred revenue 2410 -                    -                    

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                    

Lease payable 2315 -                    

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX 215,777            215,777            

Total Liabilities 766,182            -                    -                    -                    766,182            

 

Fund Balance  

Nonspendable 2710 107,345            107,345            

Restricted 2720 -                    

Committed 2730 -                    

Assigned 2740 153,923            153,923            

Unassigned 2750 2,200,895         2,200,895         

 

Total Fund Balance 2,462,163         -                    -                    -                    2,462,163         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 3,228,345$       -$                  -$                  -$                  3,228,345$       

 

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended May 31, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

  May 31, 2021   

South Tech Academy with MSID Number 1571

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 1,165        

FTE Actual 1,193        102% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                   -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -                    %

    Federal through state and local 3200 92,083              857,843            717,252            120%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 766,060             6,589,867         7,042,206         94%

    Capital outlay 3397 15,595               120,946            129,678            93%

    Class size reduction 3355 129,851             999,851            1,094,583         91%

    School recognition 3361 -                     -                    -                    

    Other state revenue 33XX 251,431             322,706            367,280            88%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 225                    2,265                5,000                45%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413 #

    Other local revenue 34XX 33,654               190,695            220,000            87%

Total Revenues 1,196,816          8,226,330         8,858,747         93% 92,083              857,843            717,252            120%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 415,933             4,435,407         4,857,233         91% 31,267              596,735            459,041            130%

Instructional support services 6000 43,701               540,762            689,246            78% 17,787              177,704            258,211            69%

Board 7100 5,478                 83,972              109,076            77%

General administration 7200 12,910               135,609            171,488            79%

School administration 7300 63,057               689,084            808,150            85%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 2,952                 95,889              -                    

Fiscal services 7500 13,098               185,608            209,168            89%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 24,704               154,403            197,946            78%

Pupil transportation services 7800 37,677               278,809            675,000            41% -                    525                   -                    

Operation of plant 7900 61,831               631,179            769,459            82% 12,676              98,123              -                    

Maintenance of plant 8100 7,942                 44,575              51,620              86%

Administrative technology services 8200 7,106                 79,035              77,924              101%

Community services 9100 15,420               113,653            210,000            54%

Debt service 9200 1,005                 10,509              -                    

Total Expenditures 712,814             7,478,494         8,826,310         85% 61,730              873,087            717,252            122%

` 484,002             747,836            32,437              30,353              (15,244)             -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 30,353               -                    -                    -                    15,244              

Transfers out 9700 -                     (15,244)             (30,353)             -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 30,353               (15,244)             -                    (30,353)             15,244              -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 514,355             732,592            32,437              -                    -                    

Fund balances, beginning 1,955,324          1,814,883         2,026,074         90%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance (7,516)                (85,312)             

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 1,947,808          1,729,571         2,026,074         85% -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balances, Ending 2,462,163$        2,462,163$       2,058,511$       120% -$                  -$                  -                    %

For the Month Ended May 31, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

South Tech Academy with MSID Number (1571)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ Quarter 

Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % -                    -                    -                    %

92,083              857,843            717,252            120%

 

766,060            6,589,867         7,042,206         94%

15,595              120,946            129,678            93%

129,851            999,851            1,094,583         91%

-                    -                    -                    

251,431            322,706            367,280            88%

225                   2,265                5,000                45%

-                    -                    -                    

33,654              190,695            220,000            87%

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,288,899         9,084,173         9,575,999         95%

447,200            5,032,142         5,316,274         95%

61,488              718,466            947,457            76%

5,478                83,972              109,076            77%

12,910              135,609            171,488            79%

63,057              689,084            808,150            85%

2,952                95,889              -                    

13,098              185,608            209,168            89%

-                    -                    -                    

24,704              154,403            197,946            78%

37,677              279,334            675,000            41%

-                    -                    -                    74,507              729,302            769,459            95%

7,942                44,575              51,620              86%

7,106                79,035              77,924              101%

15,420              113,653            210,000            54%

1,005                10,509              -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    774,544            8,351,581         9,543,562         88%

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    514,355            732,592            32,437              

30,353              15,244              -                    

-                    -                    (30,353)             (15,244)             -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    514,355            732,592            32,437              

1,955,324         1,814,883         2,026,074         90%

(7,516)               (85,312)             -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,947,808         1,729,571         2,026,074         85%

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % 2,462,163         2,462,163         2,058,511         120%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



 

Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 2,816,231$       -$                  -$                  -$                  2,816,231$       

Investments 1160 -                    

Grant receivables 1130 136,564            136,564            

Other current assets 12XX 175,297            175,297            

Deposits 1210 34,232              -                    34,232              

Due from other funds 1140 -                    

Other long-term assets 1400 -                    

 

Total Assets 3,162,324$       -$                  -$                  -$                  3,162,324$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  

Liabilities  

Accounts payable 2120 61,283$            -$                  -$                  -$                  61,283$            

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 396,486            396,486            

Deferred revenue 2410 -                    -                    

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                    

Lease payable 2315 -                    

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX 237,742            237,742            

Total Liabilities 695,511            -                    -                    -                    695,511            

 

Fund Balance  

Nonspendable 2710 209,529            209,529            

Restricted 2720 -                    

Committed 2730 -                    

Assigned 2740 153,923            153,923            

Unassigned 2750 2,103,361         2,103,361         

 

Total Fund Balance 2,466,813         -                    -                    -                    2,466,813         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 3,162,324$       -$                  -$                  -$                  3,162,324$       

 

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended June 30, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

  June 30, 2021   

South Tech Academy with MSID Number 1571

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 1,165        

FTE Actual 1,192        102% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                   -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -                    %

    Federal through state and local 3200 76,515              934,358            717,252            130%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 727,994             7,317,861         7,042,206         104%

    Capital outlay 3397 15,226               136,172            129,678            105%

    Class size reduction 3355 129,851             1,129,702         1,094,583         103%

    School recognition 3361 -                     -                    -                    

    Other state revenue 33XX 16                      322,722            367,280            88%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 247                    2,512                5,000                50%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413 #

    Other local revenue 34XX 28,207               218,902            220,000            100%

Total Revenues 901,541             9,127,871         8,858,747         103% 76,515              934,358            717,252            130%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 502,355             4,937,762         4,857,233         102% 28,005              624,407            459,041            136%

Instructional support services 6000 52,340               593,102            689,246            86% 31,261              190,310            258,211            74%

Board 7100 11,783               95,755              109,076            88%

General administration 7200 12,806               148,415            171,488            87%

School administration 7300 68,522               757,606            808,150            94%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 5,159                 101,048            -                    

Fiscal services 7500 14,309               199,917            209,168            96%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 11,134               165,537            197,946            84%

Pupil transportation services 7800 119,581             398,390            675,000            59% -                    525                   -                    

Operation of plant 7900 65,005               696,184            769,459            90% 2,005                119,116            -                    

Maintenance of plant 8100 8,952                 53,527              51,620              104%

Administrative technology services 8200 9,122                 88,157              77,924              113%

Community services 9100 17,436               131,089            210,000            62%

Debt service 9200 786                    11,295              -                    

Total Expenditures 899,290             8,377,784         8,826,310         95% 61,271              934,358            717,252            130%

2,251                 750,087            32,437              15,244              -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 15,244               -                    -                    -                    -                    

Transfers out 9700 -                     -                    (15,244)             -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 15,244               -                    -                    (15,244)             -                    -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 17,495               750,087            32,437              -                    -                    

Fund balances, beginning 2,462,163          1,814,883         2,026,074         90%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance (12,845)              (98,157)             

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 2,449,318          1,716,726         2,026,074         85% -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balances, Ending 2,466,813$        2,466,813$       2,058,511$       120% -$                  -$                  -                    %

For the Month Ended June 30, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

South Tech Academy with MSID Number (1571)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ Quarter 

Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % -                    -                    -                    %

76,515              934,358            717,252            130%

 

727,994            7,317,861         7,042,206         104%

15,226              136,172            129,678            105%

129,851            1,129,702         1,094,583         103%

-                    -                    -                    

16                     322,722            367,280            88%

247                   2,512                5,000                50%

-                    -                    -                    

28,207              218,902            220,000            100%

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    978,056            10,062,229       9,575,999         105%

530,360            5,562,169         5,316,274         105%

83,601              783,412            947,457            83%

11,783              95,755              109,076            88%

12,806              148,415            171,488            87%

68,522              757,606            808,150            94%

5,159                101,048            -                    

14,309              199,917            209,168            96%

-                    -                    -                    

11,134              165,537            197,946            84%

119,581            398,915            675,000            59%

-                    -                    -                    67,010              815,300            769,459            106%

8,952                53,527              51,620              104%

9,122                88,157              77,924              113%

17,436              131,089            210,000            62%

786                   11,295              -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    960,561            9,312,142         9,543,562         98%

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    17,495              750,087            32,437              

15,244              -                    -                    

-                    -                    (15,244)             -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    17,495              750,087            32,437              

2,462,163         1,814,883         2,026,074         90%

(12,845)             (98,157)             -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,449,318         1,716,726         2,026,074         85%

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % 2,466,813         2,466,813         2,058,511         120%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC Balance 
Sheet and Profit & Loss Report for month ending May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
Per the Articles of Incorporation, SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC shall be Member Managed 
within the meaning of Section 605.0407, Florida Statutes, and have a single member 
consisting of SOUTH TECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC., a Florida nonprofit corporation 
("the Member"). 
 
Attachments:  STSH Balance Sheet 
             STSH Profit & Loss Report 
 
Presented By: 
 
Ginger DeKalb, Accounting Manager 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
F-2 

 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 

 













Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the consulting agreement with The Stepping Stones Group 
LLC for Speech-Language Pathology and other services offered as needed.  
 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Stepping Stone Group LLC is able to provide the following services under this Agreement 
and the corresponding hourly bill rates for each service are listed below. These expenses are 
primarily paid with IDEA Grant funds. 
 
Specialty       Hourly Rate 
 
Speech Pathology      $63.00 
Occupational Therapy     $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
Physical Therapy      $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
School Psychologist      $68.00 
ESE Specialist      $60.00 
Board Certified Behavior Analyst    $70.00 
Board Certified Assistant Behavior Analyst   $50.00 
Registered Nurse      $55.00 
Licensed Practical Nurse     $45.00 
Teacher of the Visually Impaired    $65.00 
Sign Language Interpreter     $68.00 
Deaf and Hard of Hearing     $65.00 
 
Attachment:  The Stepping Stones Group LLC Consulting Agreement SY2021-2022.   
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The financial impact for this item is approximately $91,000 to be proportionally distributed 
between SouthTech Academy and SouthTech Preparatory Academy. 
The amount of $85,000 is in the SY22 IDEA grant budget.  
 

Agenda Item 
F-3 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 



Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

1  

       

AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is made and entered on July 28, 2021by and between THE STEPPING STONES 
GROUP LLC, Regional Office located at 551 NW 77th Street Suite 111 Boca Raton, FL 33487 hereinafter 
referred to as “Contractor” and, SOUTH TECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. d/b/a SOUTH TECH 
ACADEMY, 6161 W. Woolbright Road., Boynton Beach, FL 33437, hereinafter referred to as “School.” 
It is hereby agreed as follows: 
 
TERM: The Agreement will commence on August 1,2021 and shall and continue through the end of the 
2021-2022 school year, and unless either party notifies the other party in writing prior to sixty (60) days 
before the beginning of the next succeeding school year, the Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically 
renewed for the next succeeding school year.  

 
SERVICES, RATES AND BILLING: Contractor agrees to provide the services, at the designated rates, 
as listed in Appendix A to this Agreement in accordance with the needs of the students and or upon 
request of the School.  All services shall be appropriately documented in accordance with School policies 
and procedures.  All professionals shall be duly licensed and or certified as required by the School and or 
by the State of Florida, shall comply with the Jessica Lunsford Act and shall be fingerprinted and security 
cleared prior to having any contact with students. 

 
School agrees to be billed by Contractor for up to 40 hours per week for each of Contractor’s employees, 
unless agreed otherwise. No employee of Contractor will work above 40 hours per week without advanced 
authorization from both Contractor and the designated supervisor assigned by School. Any hours worked 
that are considered overtime by state or federal law will be billed at 150% of bill rate. School will not be 
billed during school closures and school holidays. 

 
When Statutory Costs and other employee costs of living increase, Contractor will pass those increases 
along to School with no mark-up. School agrees to pay such increases at the same time as any billed fees 
pursuant to this Agreement. Statutory Costs include any costs and expenses of Contractor that are 
associated with Workers Comp, FICA, FUTA, SUTA, and incremental costs associated with the 
Affordable Care Act (ACA), among others. 

 
PAYMENT TERMS: School will be billed every two weeks via email and agrees to pay all outstanding 
invoices within 30 days of receipt. School agrees and understands that School is billed on actual hours of 
service provided by the Contractor’s employee, based on the total hours listed on a biweekly timesheet. To 
ensure billing accuracy and timeliness, School will complete the Billing Details just above the signature 
section of this Agreement.  All payments shall be mailed to the Contractor’s lockbox address (provided 
below) or via ACH as may be arranged.  
 
 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

2  

The Stepping Stones Group, LLC 
PO Box 6280  

Carol Stream, IL 60197 
 

A finance charge of 1.5% per month on the unpaid amount of an invoice, or the maximum amount allowed 
by law, will be charged on past due accounts. Payments by School will thereafter be applied first to 
accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid balance. Any attorneys’ fees, court costs, or other costs 
incurred in collection of delinquent accounts shall be paid by School. If payment of invoices is not current, 
Contractor may suspend performing further work. 

 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE: Contractor will be responsible for providing all employee 
benefits and general and professional liability insurance including Workers’ Compensation coverage. 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION: Contractor warrants and represents that it does not discriminate in hiring and 
employment practices regarding race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital 
status, pregnancy, or sexual orientation.  

 
NO SOLICITATION: During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years after the 
termination of this Agreement, School agrees not to contract with directly or indirectly, offer employment 
to or hire any employee of the Contractor assigned to School or any candidate submitted by Contractor to 
School. School agrees that liquidated damages may be assessed and recovered by Contractor. 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY: School agrees not to provide the content information of this Agreement to any 
individual or an entity that may be considered a competitor of the Contractor. School further agrees not to 
discuss or disclose any information pertaining to the contents of this Agreement including but not limited to 
fees/costs, duration, and terms, etc. to the Contractor’s employee assigned to provide services to the 
School. Disclosure of such information to the Contractor’s employee will be considered a breach of this 
Agreement. Both parties may receive information that is proprietary to or confidential to the other party or 
its affiliated companies and their clients. 

 
Both parties agree to hold such information in strict confidence and not to disclose such information to third 
parties or to use such information for any purpose whatsoever other than performing under this Agreement 
or as required by law.  Contractor agrees that it is subject to all federal and state laws and School policies 
relating to the confidentiality of student information and shall comply with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act (FERPA).  No knowledge, possession, or use of School’s confidential information will be 
imputed to Contractor because of any of Contractor’s employees having access to such information. The 
provisions set forth in the foregoing paragraph and this paragraph shall survive expiration or other 
termination of this Agreement, regardless of the cause of such termination. 
 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

3  

 
COOPERATION: School agrees to cooperate fully and to help Contractor in the investigation and 
resolution of any complaints, claims, actions, or proceedings that may be brought by or that may involve 
any employees of Contractor. 

 
DEFICENCIES: Should (a) Contractor’s employee assigned to School is deficient in performance of the 
services hereunder or (b) any employee of Contractor assigned to School commits an act of professional or 
ethical misconduct. School agrees to notify Contractor of any deficiencies in services or possible ethical or 
professional conduct as soon as School becomes aware of such deficiencies or misconduct and further agrees 
to permit Contractor the opportunity to cure any deficiency or misconduct within thirty (30) days of such 
notice. 
 
TERMINATION: Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing a sixty 
(60) day advance written notice to the other party. The School may not terminate the Agreement while in 
monetary default of the Agreement.   Contractor may terminate this Agreement if School discontinues 
operations or if School fails to make any payments as required by this Agreement.  

 

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: To the extent permitted by law, 
Contractor will defend, indemnify, and hold School and its parents, subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, 
representatives, and employees harmless from all claims, losses, and liabilities (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused by or arising from Contractor’s breach of this Agreement; its failure to 
discharge its duties and responsibilities; or the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor or 
Contractor’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the discharge of those duties and responsibilities. 

 
To the extent permitted by law, School will defend, indemnify, and hold Contractor and its parents, 
subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, representatives, and employees harmless from all claims, losses, 
and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused by or arising from School’s breach 
of this Agreement; its failure to discharge its duties and responsibilities; or the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of School or School’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the discharge of those 
duties and responsibilities. 

 
Neither party shall be liable for or be required to indemnify the other party for any incidental, consequential, 
exemplary, special, punitive, or lost profit damages that arise in connection with this Agreement, regardless 
of the form of action (whether in contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, or otherwise) and regardless of 
how characterized, even if such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 

 
As a condition precedent to indemnification, the party seeking indemnification will inform the other party 
within ten (10) business days after it receives notice of any claim, loss, liability, or demand for which it 
seeks indemnification from the other party; and the party seeking indemnification will cooperate in the 
investigation and defense of any such matter. 

 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

4  

The provisions in this section of the Agreement constitute the complete agreement between the parties with 
respect to indemnification, and each party waives its right to assert any common-law indemnification or 
contribution claim against the other party. 

 
JURISDICTION: This agreement shall be governed by, construed, and is enforceable in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Florida. Any action or proceeding relating to or arising out of this Agreement shall be 
commenced and heard in the State or Federal Court sitting in Florida. Both parties hereby consent to the 
jurisdiction and venue of such courts. 
 
NOTICES: Notices to Contractor shall be sent to: 
 

The Stepping Stones Group 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 

Lafayette, CO  80026 
 

With a copy to: 
The Stepping Stones Group 

551 NW 77th Street Suite 111 
Boca Raton, FL  33487 

 
   Notices to School shall be sent to: 
 

South Tech Academy 
6161W. Woolbright Road  
Boynton Beach, FL 33437 

 
GENERAL: No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived unless agreed to in writing and 
signed by the parties. The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the 
parties and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 
 
 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

5  

 
 

BILLING DETAILS FOR SCHOOL: 
 

Billing Contact Name/Title:  Ginger DeKalb/Accounting   
 

Billing Email/Phone:   Ginger.Dekalb@pbcharterschools.org/561-369-7000  
 

Mailing Address (for invoice):  6161W Woolbright Road Boynton Beach, FL  33437  
 
 
 

Special Billing Instructions:    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed for Contractor: Signed for School: 
 
 

Signature:  Signature:   
 
 

Name: Victor Suvall  Name:  Robert M. Kesten  
 
 

Title: Executive Director  Title:   Board Chair ___________________  
 

 

Date:  Date:    

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

6  

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 
The services that may be provided under this Agreement and the corresponding hourly bill rates for each 
service are listed below: 

 
 
 
Specialty Hourly Rate 
 
 
Speech Pathology $63.00 
Occupational Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
Physical Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
School Psychologist $68.00 
ESE Specialist $60.00 
Board Certified Behavior Analyst $70.00 
Board Certified Assistant Behavior Analyst $50.00 
Registered Nurse $55.00 
Licensed Practical Nurse $45.00 
Teacher of the Visually Impaired $65.00 
Sign Language Interpreter $68.00 
Deaf and Hard of Hearing  $65.00 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board ratify the Vendor Advertisement Agreement between SouthTech 
Academy and Ed Morse Automotive Group.  
 
 
Summary Information: 
 
SouthTech Academy agrees to provide naming rights to the Automotive Technology Academy 
as well as other promotional opportunities to The Ed Morse Automotive Group in exchange for a 
$150,000 Sponsorship donation to be allocated over the next three years. 
 
Attachment:  Vendor Advertisement Agreement between SouthTech Academy and Ed Morse 
Automotive Group 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is a financial gain for SouthTech Academy of $50,000 per year over the next three years 
for a total of $150,000. 
 

Agenda Item 
F-4 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 















Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve the agreement with All Metro Health Care for the school 
nurse for the 2021-2022 School Year. 
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
A Request for Quote was generated to acquire School Nurse Services for SouthTech Academy.  
All Metro quoted the lowest hourly wage at $40/hour, which is an increase of $7.00/per hour 
over SY21. Other agencies provided quotes that were much higher.  
 
Attachments:  All Metro Health Care Nurse Agreement    
 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The financial impact for this item is $7,770 over the budgeted amount of $44,030 for SY22. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
F-5 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 





Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the amended STA Operating Budget for SY21. 
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
Adjustments have been made to the original budget to reflect proposed changes in revenues and 
expenditures. These adjustments are made in compliance with the School District of Palm Beach 
County and do not affect our June financials. 
       
 
Attachment: Amended STA SY21 Operating Budget 
 

            
 
Presented By: 
 
Ginger DeKalb, Finance Manager 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The amended budget reflects actual revenues and expenses. 
 

Agenda Item 
F-6 

 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 

 



South Tech Academy  - SY21 Amended Budget

 SY21 Amended Budget  

Based on 1,192 Students    

June 2021           

Revenues:

General Operating - FEFP

3310000 · Base Student Allocation 7,317,861                     

3355000 · Class Size Reduction 1,129,702                     

3310390 - FEFP for Capital Projects 136,172                        

Total General Operating - FEFP 8,583,735$                  

General Operating - Other

343100 - Interest on Investments 2,512                            

33xx000 - Other State Revenue 322,722                        

Total General Operating - Other 325,234$                      

Total Other Local Revenue 218,902$                      

Federal Grant Revenue

3240000 · Title 1 335,050                        

3230000 - IDEA Grant 271,670                        

3250000 - Title II 36,620                          

3260000 - Title III 844                                

3250000 - Title IV 20,941                          

3290000 - Geers 23,802                          

3293000 - ESSER 245,431                        

Total Federal Grant Revenue 934,358$                      

Total Revenue 10,062,229$                

Operating Expenses

Total 5100000 · Instruction 2,447,759                     

Total 5200000 · ESE Instruction 349,507                        

Total 5300000 · Career Education 2,108,847                     

Total 5400000 · Adult Education 5,084                            

Total 5600000 · Classroom Costs 26,565                          

Total 6100000 · Instructional Support Services 537,161                        

Total 6400000 · Instructional/Staff Prof Dev 51,452                          

Total 6500000 · Instructional Tech 4,489                            

Total 7100000 · Board Expenses 95,755                          

Total 7200000 · General Administration 148,415                        

Total 7300000 · School Administration 757,606                        

Total 7400000 · Facilities and Acquisition 101,048                        

Total 7500000 · Fiscal Services 199,917                        

Total 7700000 · Central Services 165,537                        

Total 7800000 · Transportation 398,390                        

Total 7900000 · Operation of Plant 696,184                        

Total 8100000 · Maintenance of Plant 53,527                          

Total 8200000 · Technology Services 88,157                          

Total 9200000 · Debt Services 11,295                          

Total Operating Expenses 8,246,695$                  

Total Federal Grant Expenses 934,358$                      

Total Internal Account Expenses 131,089$                      

Total Expenses 9,312,142$                

Profit/(Loss) 750,087$                   



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve the Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools 2021-
2022. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools provides information to all staff members 
regarding working conditions, employee benefits, and some of the policies affecting their 
employment. It also describes many of the responsibilities of the employees and outlines the 
programs developed by STS to benefit employees.  
 
 
Attachments:   Employee Handbook for SouthTech Schools 2021-2022 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 

Agenda Item 
PA-1 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 





























Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for month 
ending May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 
financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  
This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 
2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 
Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 
September and December. 
 
 
Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  
 
Presented By: 
 
Ginger DeKalb, Accounting Manager 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
PF-1 

 
 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 

 



Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 926,945$         -$                 -$                 -$                 926,945$         

Investments 1160 -                   

Grant receivables 1130 25,647             25,647             

Other current assets 12XX 47,528             47,528             

Deposits 1210 87,400             87,400             

Due from other funds 1140 39,449             39,449             

Other long-term assets 1400 -                   

Total Assets 1,126,969$      -$                 -$                 -$                 1,126,969$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2120 14,054$           -$                 -$                 -$                 14,054$           

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 29,049             29,049             

Deferred revenue 2410 -                   

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                   

Lease payable 2315 -                   

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX -                   

Total Liabilities 43,103             -                   -                   -                   43,103             

Fund Balance

Nonspendable 2710 134,928           134,928           

Restricted 2720 -                   

Committed 2730 -                   

Assigned 2740 118,840           118,840           

Unassigned 2750 830,098           830,098           

Total Fund Balance 1,083,866        -                   -                   -                   1,083,866        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 1,126,969$      -$                 -$                 -$                 1,126,969$      

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended May 31, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

  May 31, 2021   

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number 3441

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 535

FTE Actual 525 98% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -                    %

    Federal through state and local 3200 54,918              400,572            268,844            149%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 290,475            3,081,172         3,225,366         96%

    Capital outlay 3397 -                    

    Class size reduction 3355 41,132              452,452            498,505            91%

    School recognition 3361

    Other state revenue 33XX 4,048                11,088              37,770              29%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 76                     712                   1,100                65%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413

    Other local revenue 34XX 16,577              68,790              334,429            21%

Total Revenues 352,308            3,614,214         4,097,170         88% 54,918              400,572            268,844            149%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 128,684            1,359,362         1,795,488         76% 15,460              238,273            174,749            136%

Instructional support services 6000 8,210                224,028            263,908            85% 24,083              142,923            94,095              152%

Board 7100 1,987                37,440              33,082              113%

General administration 7200 12,395              130,289            145,163            90%

School administration 7300 34,664              378,336            422,951            89%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 -                    -                    -                    

Fiscal services 7500 5,766                78,260              92,483              85%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 12,556              64,221              61,357              105%

Pupil transportation services 7800 30,769              220,345            315,000            70%

Operation of plant 7900 69,110              733,199            1,000,172         73% 1,428                26,168              -                    

Maintenance of plant 8100 3,316                54,308              55,523              98%

Administrative technology services 8200 5,215                62,120              65,316              95%

Community services 9100 2,537                48,308              100,000            48%

Debt service 9200

Total Expenditures 315,209            3,390,216         4,350,443         78% 40,971              407,364            268,844            152%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 37,099              223,998            (253,273)           -88% 13,947              (6,792)               -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 35,546              253,535            361,000            -                    6,792                

Transfers out 9700 -                    (6,792)               (13,947)             -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 35,546              246,743            361,000            68% (13,947)             6,792                -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 72,645              470,741            107,727            -                    -                    -                    

Fund balances, beginning 1,011,221         614,559            724,704            85%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance -                    (1,434)               

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 1,011,221         613,125            724,704            85% -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balances, Ending 1,083,866$       1,083,866$       832,431            130% -$                  -$                  -                    %

For the Month Ended May 31, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number (3441)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ Quarter 

Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % -                    -                    -                    %

54,918              400,572            268,844            149%

290,475            3,081,172         3,225,366         96%

21,599              253,535            264,784            96% 21,599              253,535            264,784            96%

41,132              452,452            498,505            91%

-                    -                    -                    

4,048                11,088              37,770              29%

76                     712                   1,100                65%

% -                    -                    -                    

16,577              68,790              334,429            21%

-                    -                    -                    21,599              253,535            264,784            96% 428,825            4,268,321         4,630,798         92%

144,144            1,597,635         1,970,237         81%

32,293              366,951            358,003            102%

1,987                37,440              33,082              113%

12,395              130,289            145,163            90%

34,664              378,336            422,951            89%

-                    -                    -                    

5,766                78,260              92,483              85%

-                    -                    -                    

12,556              64,221              61,357              105%

 30,769              220,345            315,000            70%

70,538              759,367            1,000,172         76%

3,316                54,308              55,523              98%

5,215                62,120              65,316              95%

2,537                48,308              100,000            48%

-                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    356,180            3,797,580         4,619,288         82%

-                    -                    -                    21,599              253,535            264,784            96% 72,645              470,741            11,511              4090%

35,546              260,327            361,000             

(21,599)             (253,535)           (361,000)           (35,546)             (260,327)           (361,000)            

-                    -                    -                    (21,599)             (253,535)           (361,000)           -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    72,645              470,741            11,511               

1,011,221         614,559            724,704            85%

-                    (1,434)               -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,011,221         613,125            724,704            85%

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % 1,083,866$       1,083,866$       736,215$          147%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 943,900$         -$                 -$                 -$                 943,900$         

Investments 1160 -                   

Grant receivables 1130 21,598             21,598             

Other current assets 12XX 83,910             83,910             

Deposits 1210 87,400             87,400             

Due from other funds 1140 74,439             74,439             

Other long-term assets 1400 -                   

Total Assets 1,211,247$      -$                 -$                 -$                 1,211,247$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2120 24,665$           -$                 -$                 -$                 24,665$           

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 21,954             21,954             

Deferred revenue 2410 -                   

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                   

Lease payable 2315 -                   

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX -                   

Total Liabilities 46,619             -                   -                   -                   46,619             

Fund Balance

Nonspendable 2710 171,310           171,310           

Restricted 2720 -                   

Committed 2730 -                   

Assigned 2740 118,840           118,840           

Unassigned 2750 874,479           874,479           

Total Fund Balance 1,164,629        -                   -                   -                   1,164,629        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 1,211,247$      -$                 -$                 -$                 1,211,247$      

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended June 30, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

  June 30, 2021   

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number 3441

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 535

FTE Actual 525 98% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -                    %

    Federal through state and local 3200 50,132              450,704            268,844            168%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 280,268            3,361,440         3,225,366         104%

    Capital outlay 3397 -                    

    Class size reduction 3355 41,132              493,584            498,505            99%

    School recognition 3361

    Other state revenue 33XX 8,830                19,918              37,770              53%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 77                     789                   1,100                72%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413

    Other local revenue 34XX 7,282                76,072              334,429            23%

Total Revenues 337,589            3,951,803         4,097,170         96% 50,132              450,704            268,844            168%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 142,182            1,501,544         1,795,488         84% 10,302              248,575            174,749            142%

Instructional support services 6000 21,651              245,679            263,908            93% 35,528              178,451            94,095              190%

Board 7100 5,680                43,120              33,082              130%

General administration 7200 12,156              142,445            145,163            98%

School administration 7300 48,845              427,181            422,951            101%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 -                    -                    -                    

Fiscal services 7500 6,280                84,540              92,483              91%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 4,608                68,829              61,357              112%

Pupil transportation services 7800 (43,806)             176,539            315,000            56%

Operation of plant 7900 70,415              803,614            1,000,172         80% (2,490)               23,678              -                    

Maintenance of plant 8100 3,023                57,331              55,523              103%

Administrative technology services 8200 5,215                67,335              65,316              103%

Community services 9100 6,113                54,421              100,000            54%

Debt service 9200

Total Expenditures 282,362            3,672,578         4,350,443         84% 43,340              450,704            268,844            168%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 55,227              279,225            (253,273)           -110% 6,792                -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 28,390              275,133            361,000            -                    -                    

Transfers out 9700 -                    -                    (6,792)               -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 28,390              275,133            361,000            76% (6,792)               -                    -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 83,617              554,358            107,727            -                    -                    -                    

Fund balances, beginning 1,083,866         614,559            724,704            85%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance (2,854)               (4,288)               

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 1,081,012         610,271            724,704            84% -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balances, Ending 1,164,629$       1,164,629$       832,431            140% -$                  -$                  -                    %

For the Month Ended June 30, 2021 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number (3441)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ Quarter 

Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % -                    -                    -                    %

50,132              450,704            268,844            168%

280,268            3,361,440         3,225,366         104%

21,598              275,133            264,784            104% 21,598              275,133            264,784            104%

41,132              493,584            498,505            99%

-                    -                    -                    

8,830                19,918              37,770              53%

77                     789                   1,100                72%

% -                    -                    -                    

7,282                76,072              334,429            23%

-                    -                    -                    21,598              275,133            264,784            104% 409,319            4,677,640         4,630,798         101%

152,484            1,750,119         1,970,237         89%

57,179              424,130            358,003            118%

5,680                43,120              33,082              130%

12,156              142,445            145,163            98%

48,845              427,181            422,951            101%

-                    -                    -                    

6,280                84,540              92,483              91%

-                    -                    -                    

4,608                68,829              61,357              112%

 (43,806)             176,539            315,000            56%

67,925              827,292            1,000,172         83%

3,023                57,331              55,523              103%

5,215                67,335              65,316              103%

6,113                54,421              100,000            54%

-                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    325,702            4,123,282         4,619,288         89%

-                    -                    -                    21,598              275,133            264,784            104% 83,617              554,358            11,511              4816%

28,390              275,133            361,000             

(21,598)             (275,133)           (361,000)           (28,390)             (275,133)           (361,000)            

-                    -                    -                    (21,598)             (275,133)           (361,000)           -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    83,617              554,358            11,511               

1,083,866         614,559            724,704            85%

(2,854)               (4,288)               -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,081,012         610,271            724,704            84%

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % 1,164,629$       1,164,629$       736,215$          158%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the consulting agreement with The Stepping Stones Group 
LLC for Speech-Language Pathology and other services offered as needed.  
 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Stepping Stone Group LLC is able to provide the following services under this Agreement 
and the corresponding hourly bill rates for each service are listed below. These expenses are 
primarily paid with IDEA Grant funds. 
 
Specialty       Hourly Rate 
 
Speech Pathology      $63.00 
Occupational Therapy     $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
Physical Therapy      $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
School Psychologist      $68.00 
ESE Specialist      $60.00 
Board Certified Behavior Analyst    $70.00 
Board Certified Assistant Behavior Analyst   $50.00 
Registered Nurse      $55.00 
Licensed Practical Nurse     $45.00 
Teacher of the Visually Impaired    $65.00 
Sign Language Interpreter     $68.00 
Deaf and Hard of Hearing     $65.00 
 
Attachment:  The Stepping Stones Group LLC Consulting Agreement SY2021-2022.   
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The financial impact for this item is approximately $91,000 to be proportionally distributed 
between SouthTech Academy and SouthTech Preparatory Academy. 
The amount of $85,000 is in the SY22 IDEA grant budget. 

Agenda Item 
PF-2 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 



Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

1  

       

AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is made and entered on July 28, 2021by and between THE STEPPING STONES 
GROUP LLC, Regional Office located at 551 NW 77th Street Suite 111 Boca Raton, FL 33487 hereinafter 
referred to as “Contractor” and, SOUTH TECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. d/b/a SOUTH TECH 
PREPARATORY ACADEMY, 1325 Gateway Blvd., Boynton Beach, FL 33426, hereinafter referred to as 
“School.” It is hereby agreed as follows: 
 
TERM: The Agreement will commence on August 1,2021 and shall and continue through the end of the 
2021-2022 school year, and unless either party notifies the other party in writing prior to sixty (60) days 
before the beginning of the next succeeding school year, the Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically 
renewed for the next succeeding school year.  

 
SERVICES, RATES AND BILLING: Contractor agrees to provide the services, at the designated rates, 
as listed in Appendix A to this Agreement in accordance with the needs of the students and or upon 
request of the School.  All services shall be appropriately documented in accordance with School policies 
and procedures.  All professionals shall be duly licensed and or certified as required by the School and or 
by the State of Florida, shall comply with the Jessica Lunsford Act and shall be fingerprinted and security 
cleared prior to having any contact with students. 

 
School agrees to be billed by Contractor for up to 40 hours per week for each of Contractor’s employees, 
unless agreed otherwise. No employee of Contractor will work above 40 hours per week without advanced 
authorization from both Contractor and the designated supervisor assigned by School. Any hours worked 
that are considered overtime by state or federal law will be billed at 150% of bill rate. School will not be 
billed during school closures and school holidays. 

 
When Statutory Costs and other employee costs of living increase, Contractor will pass those increases 
along to School with no mark-up. School agrees to pay such increases at the same time as any billed fees 
pursuant to this Agreement. Statutory Costs include any costs and expenses of Contractor that are 
associated with Workers Comp, FICA, FUTA, SUTA, and incremental costs associated with the 
Affordable Care Act (ACA), among others. 

 
PAYMENT TERMS: School will be billed every two weeks via email and agrees to pay all outstanding 
invoices within 30 days of receipt. School agrees and understands that School is billed on actual hours of 
service provided by the Contractor’s employee, based on the total hours listed on a biweekly timesheet. To 
ensure billing accuracy and timeliness, School will complete the Billing Details just above the signature 
section of this Agreement.  All payments shall be mailed to the Contractor’s lockbox address (provided 
below) or via ACH as may be arranged.  
 
 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

2  

The Stepping Stones Group, LLC 
PO Box 6280  

Carol Stream, IL 60197 
 

A finance charge of 1.5% per month on the unpaid amount of an invoice, or the maximum amount allowed 
by law, will be charged on past due accounts. Payments by School will thereafter be applied first to 
accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid balance. Any attorneys’ fees, court costs, or other costs 
incurred in collection of delinquent accounts shall be paid by School. If payment of invoices is not current, 
Contractor may suspend performing further work. 

 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE: Contractor will be responsible for providing all employee 
benefits and general and professional liability insurance including Workers’ Compensation coverage. 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION: Contractor warrants and represents that it does not discriminate in hiring and 
employment practices regarding race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital 
status, pregnancy, or sexual orientation.  

 
NO SOLICITATION: During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years after the 
termination of this Agreement, School agrees not to contract with directly or indirectly, offer employment 
to or hire any employee of the Contractor assigned to School or any candidate submitted by Contractor to 
School. School agrees that liquidated damages may be assessed and recovered by Contractor. 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY: School agrees not to provide the content information of this Agreement to any 
individual or an entity that may be considered a competitor of the Contractor. School further agrees not to 
discuss or disclose any information pertaining to the contents of this Agreement including but not limited to 
fees/costs, duration, and terms, etc. to the Contractor’s employee assigned to provide services to the 
School. Disclosure of such information to the Contractor’s employee will be considered a breach of this 
Agreement. Both parties may receive information that is proprietary to or confidential to the other party or 
its affiliated companies and their clients. 

 
Both parties agree to hold such information in strict confidence and not to disclose such information to third 
parties or to use such information for any purpose whatsoever other than performing under this Agreement 
or as required by law.  Contractor agrees that it is subject to all federal and state laws and School policies 
relating to the confidentiality of student information and shall comply with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act (FERPA).  No knowledge, possession, or use of School’s confidential information will be 
imputed to Contractor because of any of Contractor’s employees having access to such information. The 
provisions set forth in the foregoing paragraph and this paragraph shall survive expiration or other 
termination of this Agreement, regardless of the cause of such termination. 
 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

3  

 
COOPERATION: School agrees to cooperate fully and to help Contractor in the investigation and 
resolution of any complaints, claims, actions, or proceedings that may be brought by or that may involve 
any employees of Contractor. 

 
DEFICENCIES: Should (a) Contractor’s employee assigned to School is deficient in performance of the 
services hereunder or (b) any employee of Contractor assigned to School commits an act of professional or 
ethical misconduct. School agrees to notify Contractor of any deficiencies in services or possible ethical or 
professional conduct as soon as School becomes aware of such deficiencies or misconduct and further agrees 
to permit Contractor the opportunity to cure any deficiency or misconduct within thirty (30) days of such 
notice. 
 
TERMINATION: Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing a sixty 
(60) day advance written notice to the other party. The School may not terminate the Agreement while in 
monetary default of the Agreement.   Contractor may terminate this Agreement if School discontinues 
operations or if School fails to make any payments as required by this Agreement.  

 

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: To the extent permitted by law, 
Contractor will defend, indemnify, and hold School and its parents, subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, 
representatives, and employees harmless from all claims, losses, and liabilities (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused by or arising from Contractor’s breach of this Agreement; its failure to 
discharge its duties and responsibilities; or the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor or 
Contractor’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the discharge of those duties and responsibilities. 

 
To the extent permitted by law, School will defend, indemnify, and hold Contractor and its parents, 
subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, representatives, and employees harmless from all claims, losses, 
and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused by or arising from School’s breach 
of this Agreement; its failure to discharge its duties and responsibilities; or the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of School or School’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the discharge of those 
duties and responsibilities. 

 
Neither party shall be liable for or be required to indemnify the other party for any incidental, consequential, 
exemplary, special, punitive, or lost profit damages that arise in connection with this Agreement, regardless 
of the form of action (whether in contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, or otherwise) and regardless of 
how characterized, even if such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 

 
As a condition precedent to indemnification, the party seeking indemnification will inform the other party 
within ten (10) business days after it receives notice of any claim, loss, liability, or demand for which it 
seeks indemnification from the other party; and the party seeking indemnification will cooperate in the 
investigation and defense of any such matter. 

 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

4  

The provisions in this section of the Agreement constitute the complete agreement between the parties with 
respect to indemnification, and each party waives its right to assert any common-law indemnification or 
contribution claim against the other party. 

 
JURISDICTION: This agreement shall be governed by, construed, and is enforceable in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Florida. Any action or proceeding relating to or arising out of this Agreement shall be 
commenced and heard in the State or Federal Court sitting in Florida. Both parties hereby consent to the 
jurisdiction and venue of such courts. 
 
NOTICES: Notices to Contractor shall be sent to: 
 

The Stepping Stones Group 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 

Lafayette, CO  80026 
 

With a copy to: 
The Stepping Stones Group 

551 NW 77th Street Suite 111 
Boca Raton, FL  33487 

 
   Notices to School shall be sent to: 
 

South Tech Preparatory Academy 
1325 Gateway Blvd. #8304 
Boynton Beach, FL 33426 

 
GENERAL: No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived unless agreed to in writing and 
signed by the parties. The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the 
parties and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 
 
 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

5  

 
 

BILLING DETAILS FOR SCHOOL: 
 

Billing Contact Name/Title:  Ginger DeKalb/Accounting   
 

Billing Email/Phone:   ginger.dekalb@pbcharterschools.org/561-369-7000  
 

Mailing Address (for invoice):  6161W Woolbright Road Boynton Beach, FL  33437  
 
 
 

Special Billing Instructions:    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed for Contractor: Signed for School: 
 
 

Signature:  Signature:   
 
 

Name: Victor Suvall  Name:  Robert M. Kesten  
 
 

Title: Executive Director  Title:   Board Chair ___________________  
 

 

Date:  Date:    

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Corporate Office 
2586 Trailridge Drive East, Suite 100 
Lafayette, CO 80026 
Ph: 800-337-5965 Fax: 800-822-8287 
www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com 

 

6  

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 
The services that may be provided under this Agreement and the corresponding hourly bill rates for each 
service are listed below: 

 
 
 
Specialty Hourly Rate 
 
 
Speech Pathology $63.00 
Occupational Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
Physical Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit 
School Psychologist $68.00 
ESE Specialist $60.00 
Board Certified Behavior Analyst $70.00 
Board Certified Assistant Behavior Analyst $50.00 
Registered Nurse $55.00 
Licensed Practical Nurse $45.00 
Teacher of the Visually Impaired $65.00 
Sign Language Interpreter $68.00 
Deaf and Hard of Hearing  $65.00 

http://www.thesteppingstonesgroup.com/


Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the amended STPA Operating Budget for SY21. 
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
Adjustments have been made to the original budget to reflect proposed changes in revenues and 
expenditures. These adjustments are made in compliance with the School District of Palm Beach 
County and do not affect our June financials. 
       
 
Attachment: Amended STPS SY21 Operating Budget 
 

            
 
Presented By: 
 
Ginger DeKalb, Finance Manager 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The amended budget reflects actual revenues and expenses. 
 

Agenda Item 
PF-3 

 

Board Meeting 
August 12, 2021 

 



South Tech Preparatory Academy  - SY21 Amended Budget

 SY21 Amended Budget  

Based on 525 Students    

June 2021           

Revenues:

General Operating - FEFP

3310000 · Base Student Allocation 3,361,440                    

3355000 · Class Size Reduction 493,584                       

3310390 - FEFP for Capital Projects 275,133                       

Total General Operating - FEFP 4,130,157$                  

General Operating - Other

343100 - Interest on Investments 789                               

33xx000 - Other State Revenue 19,918                          

Total General Operating - Other 20,707$                       

Total Other Local Revenue 76,072$                       

Federal Grant Revenue

3240000 · Title 1 168,843                       

3230000 - IDEA Grant 94,327                          

3250000 - Title II 31,054                          

3260000 - Title III 14,756                          

3250000 - Title IV 22,609                          

3290000 - Geers 23,754                          

3293000 - ESSER 95,361                          

Total Federal Grant Revenue 450,704$                     

Total Revenue 4,677,640$                  

Operating Expenses

Total 5100000 · Instruction 1,416,549                    

Total 5200000 · ESE Instruction 72,389                          

Total 5600000 · Classroom Costs 12,606                          

Total 6100000 · Instructional Support Services 213,278                       

Total 6400000 · Instructional/Staff Prof Dev 20,695                          

Total 6500000 · Instructional Tech 11,706                          

Total 7100000 · Board Expenses 43,120                          

Total 7200000 · General Administration 142,445                       

Total 7300000 · School Administration 427,181                       

Total 7500000 · Fiscal Services 84,540                          

Total 7700000 · Central Services 68,829                          

Total 7800000 · Transportation 176,539                       

Total 7900000 · Operation of Plant 803,614                       

Total 8100000 · Maintenance of Plant 57,331                          

Total 8200000 · Technology Services 67,335                          

Total Operating Expenses 3,618,157$                  

Total Federal Grant Expenses 450,704$                     

Total Internal Account Expenses 54,421$                       

Total Expenses 4,123,282$               

Profit/(Loss) 554,358$                  


	Cover Sheet Board Member Packet 8-12-2021
	STA/STPA
	GOVERNING BOARD/SAC
	MEMBER PACKET
	Carla Lovett, Executive Director



	STA-STPA Governing Board Agenda 8.12.21
	STA-STPA Governing Board Minutes 6.10.21
	Item A-1 08-12-21 STS Employee Handbook SY21-22
	Agenda Item

	Item A-1 Backup STS Handbook
	Item F-1 8-12-2021 STA Monthly Financial Statements May 31, 2021 & June 30, 2020
	Agenda Item

	Item F-1a Backup South Tech (1571) Financial Statements May 2021
	Item F-1b Backup South Tech (1571) Financial Statements June 2021
	Item F-2 8-12-2021 STSH Balance Sheet and P&L May 31, 2021 & June 30, 2021
	Agenda Item

	Item F-2 Backup STS Holdings Balance Sheet May21
	Item F-2 Backup STS Holding Profit _ Loss YTD May21
	Item F-2 Backup STS Holdings Balance Sheet Jun21
	Item F-2 Backup STS Holdings Profit _ Loss YTD Jun21
	Item F-3 08-12-21 STA SY22 The Stepping Stones Group LLC Speech-Language Pathology Services
	Agenda Item

	Item F-3 Backup South Tech Charter-SSG Agreement 07 28 21`
	AGREEMENT
	BILLING DETAILS FOR SCHOOL:
	Appendix A
	Specialty Hourly Rate
	Speech Pathology $63.00
	Occupational Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit
	Physical Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit
	School Psychologist $68.00
	ESE Specialist $60.00
	Board Certified Behavior Analyst $70.00
	Board Certified Assistant Behavior Analyst $50.00
	Registered Nurse $55.00
	Licensed Practical Nurse $45.00
	Teacher of the Visually Impaired $65.00
	Sign Language Interpreter $68.00
	Deaf and Hard of Hearing  $65.00

	Item F-4 08-12-21 STA-Morse Advertising Agreement
	Agenda Item

	Item F-4 Backup Morse-SouthTech Agreement
	Item F-5  08-12-21 All Metro Health Care Nurse
	Agenda Item

	Item F-5 Backup All Metro Nursing SY22
	Item F-6 08-12-2021 STA SY21 Amended Budget
	Agenda Item

	Item F-6 Backup STA - SY21 Amended Budget for Board Approval
	Item PA-1 08-12-21 STS Employee Handbook SY21-22
	Agenda Item

	Item PA-1 Backup STS Handbook
	Item PF-1 8-12-2021 STPA Monthly Financial Statements May 31, 2021 & June 30, 2020
	Agenda Item

	Item PF-1 Backup South Tech Prep (3441) Financial Statements May 2021
	Item PF-1 Backup South Tech Prep (3441) Financial Statements June 2021
	Item PF-2 08-12-21 STPA SY22 The Stepping Stones Group LLC Speech-Language Pathology Services
	Agenda Item

	Item PF-2 Backup South Tech Prep-SSG Agreement 07 28 21`
	AGREEMENT
	BILLING DETAILS FOR SCHOOL:
	Appendix A
	Specialty Hourly Rate
	Speech Pathology $63.00
	Occupational Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit
	Physical Therapy $65.00 1 hour minimum per visit
	School Psychologist $68.00
	ESE Specialist $60.00
	Board Certified Behavior Analyst $70.00
	Board Certified Assistant Behavior Analyst $50.00
	Registered Nurse $55.00
	Licensed Practical Nurse $45.00
	Teacher of the Visually Impaired $65.00
	Sign Language Interpreter $68.00
	Deaf and Hard of Hearing  $65.00

	Item PF-3 08-12-2021 STPA SY21 Amended Budget
	Agenda Item

	Item PF-3 Backup STP - SY21 Amended Budget for Board Approval

